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INTRODUCTION

This case concerns the relationship between the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (“FERPA”), 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, Aandlthe Ohio Public Records Act (“PRA”™),
which exempts from disclosure “Ir]ecords the release of which is prohibited by federal

.. 1;1w.” R.C. 149.43(A)(1)(v). In response to a request for records made by ESPN, The
Ohio State University withheld certain records on the ground that their release is
: prohlblted by FERPA. ESPN now asks this Court to issue a writ of mandamus that would
compel the University to release the requested records.

This amicus curiae brief addresses two of the arguments that ESPN makes in
support of its mandamus petition. First, ESPN contends that FERPA does not “prohibit”
the release of covered records but merely sets conditions on the receipt of federal
education funds. ESPN Merits Br. 11 (emphasis omitted). That contention is incorrect.
Although participation in federal spending programs is voluntary, “schools and
educational agencies receiving federal financial assistance must cdmply with” FERPA’s
conditions. Owasso Independent School District v. Falvo, 534 U.S. 426, 428 (2002). The
Ohio State University receives federal education funds. If is therefore prohibited by
federal law from taking actions that violate the conditions on receipt of those funds,
including the conditions established by FERPA.

ESPN argues in the alternat’ive.that “the release of records in one instance” would
not constitute a ““policy or practice’” of permitting the release of education records or

personally identifiable information contained therein in violation of FERPA. ESPN




Merits Br. 14 (quoting 20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)) (emphasis omitted). The premise of
ESPN’s .argument, however, is that the PRA systematically requires the University to
felease records without regard to FERPA. If that premise were correct, the University
would have a “policy or practice” of releasing records in violation of FERPA. However,
the premise of ESPN’SI argument is incorrect because the PRA exempts records the
release of which is prohibited by federal l_aw. Accordingly, there is no conflict between
state and federal law.

The United States has not reviewed the records at issue in this case and thus takes
no position on whether the requested records are protected by FERPA.

STATEMENT OF AMICUS INTEREST

The United States has a strong interest in ensuriﬁg that a state university that
accepts federal education funds complies with the conditions on receipt of those funds.
Indeed, when a university belicves that it cannot comply with FERPA due to a potential
conflict with state law, it is required to notify the U.S. Department of Education, see 34
CFR.§ 99.61, which may take various enforcement actions including but not limited to
suit for an injunction, see United States v. Miami University, et al., 294 F.3d 797, 807-
810 (6th Cir. 2002); issuance of a cease and desist order, see 20 U.S.C. § 1234c(a)2);
entry into a compliance agreement, see id. § 1234c(a)(3); and, if compliance cannot be

secured through voluntary means, actions to terminate federal financial assistance, see id.

§§ 1232g(f), 1234c(a)(1).




STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS
A.  The FERPA

The FERPA was enacted in 1974 to give students access to their education records
and to protect their “rights to privacy by limiting the transferability of their records
without their consent.” Joint Statement, 120 Cong. Rec. 39858, 39862 (1974). To protect
student privacy, the statute generally provides that “[n]o funds shall be made available
under any applicable program 1o any educational agency or institution which has a poliéy
or practice of permitting the release of education records (or personally identifiable
information contained therein other than directory inforrﬁation .. . of students without the
written consent of their parents to any individual, agency, or organization 220
U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1); see aiso id. § 1232g(b)(2). When a student is age 18 or oldér oris
attending an institution of post-secondary education, consent is required of the student
rather than the student’s parents. Id. § 1232g(d).

The terms “education records,” “personally identifiable information,” and
“directory information” are defined by statute and regulation. The term “education
records” means (with specified exceptioné) “thos? records, files, documents, and other
materials which— (i) contain information directly related to a student; and (ii) are
maintained by an educational agency or institution of by a person acﬁng for such agency

or institution.” Id. § 1232g(a)(4)(A).




“Personally identifiable information” includes the student’s name; the name of the
student’s parent or other family members; the address of the student or student’s family; a
personal identifier such as the student’s social security number, student number, or
biometric record; other indirect identifiers, such as the student’s date of birth, place of
birth, and mother’s maiden name; other information that, alone or in combination, is
linkf;d or linkable to a speciﬁc student that would allow a reasona'ﬁle person in tﬁe school
community, who does not have personal.knowledge of the relevant circumstances, to
identify the student with reasonable certainty; or information requested by a peréon who
the educational agency or institution reasonably believes knows the identity of the student
to whom the education record relates. See 34 CF.R. § 99.3.

Information that an educational agency or institution may designate as “directory
information” relating to a student includes “the student’s name, address, telephone |
listing, date and place of birth, major field of study, participation in officially recognized
activities and sports, weight and height of members of athletic teams, dates of attendance,
degrees and awards received, and the most recent previéus educational agency or
institution attended by the student.” 20 U.S.C. § 1232g(a)(5)(A). If an educational
agency or institution elects to make directory information public, it must first give notice
of the categories of informaﬁ-on that it intends to make public and provide a reasonable

period after such notice for a parent or eligible student to inform the institution or agency




that any or all of the information designated shoul.d not be released without prior consent.
Id. § 1232g(a)(5)(B).
B. This Mandamus Action

This mandamus action arises out of a request for records made by petitioner ESPN
pursuant to the PRA. Respondent The Ohio State University withheld certain records on
the _ground that their release is prohibited by FERPA, and the records are therefore
exempt'from disclosure under the PRA provision that exempts “[r]ecords the release of
* which is prohibited by . . . federal law.” R.C. 149.43(A)1)(v). ESPN now urges this
Court to issue a writ of mandamus that would compel fhe Unijversity to release the
requested records.

ARGUMENT

Amicus Curiae United States’ Proposition of Law No. 1:

A state university that accepts federal education funds is prohibited from having a
policy or practice of disclosing covered records in violation of the FERPA.

ESPN contends that “FERPA does not prohibit the release of covered records”
but “merely sets conditions on the receipt of federal funds.” ESPN Merits Br. 11
(ESPN’s emphasis). That contention reflects a fundamental misunderstanding of
Congreés’s power under the Sp_ending Clause of the United States Constitution. See U.S.
Const., Art. I, § 8, cl. 1. Although no state is required to participate in é federal spending
program, a state that accepts federal funds must comply with the conditions on receipt of

those funds. Accordingly, “schools and educational agencies receiving federal financial
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assistance must comply with” FERPA’s conditions. Owasso Independent School District
v. Falvo, 534 U.S. 426, 428 (2002). The Ohio State University receives federal education
funds, and it is therefore “prohibited” from making disclosures that violate FERPA. R.C.
149 43(A)(1(W). |

Tt is well established that Congress may “fix the terms on which it shall disburse
federal money to the States.” New York v. United States, 505 U.S. 144, 158 (1'992)
(internal quotation marks and citation omitted). “Congress enacted FERPA under its
spending.power to condition the receipt of federal funds on certain requirements relating
to the access and disclosure of student educational records.” Gonzaga University.v. Doe,
536 U.S. 273, 278 (2002). “[S]chools and educational agehcies receiving federal
financial assistance must comply with” FERPA’s conditions. Owasso, 534 U.S, at 428;
see also 34 C.FR. §§ 99.1(a), 99.3.

Accordingly, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit issued a permanent
injunction that barred The Ohio State University and Miami University from releasing
educatiqn records that The Chronicle of Higher Education had sought pursuant to the
PRA. See United States v. Miami University, et al., 294 F.3d 797, 807-810 (6th Cir.
2002). The Sixth Circuit explained that, “*under FERPA, schools and educational
agencies receiving federal financial assistance must comply with certain conditions. One

condition specified in the Act is that sensitive information about students may not be




released without [the student’s] consent.”” Id. at 809 (quoting Owasso, 534 U.S. at 428)
(emphasis and alterations in Miami University).

ESPN observes that The Ohio State University ““could choose to reject federal
education money, and the conditions of FERPA along with it,”” and argues for that reason
thét “‘it‘ cannot be said the FERPA prevents [the University] from doing anything.””
ESPN Merits Br. 13 (quoting Chicago Tribune Co. v. University of 1llinois Bd. of
7 rustees, 781 F. Supp. 2d 672, 675 (N.D. 111 2011}, appeal pending, No. 11-2066 (7th
Cir.)). The relevant point, however, is that The Ohio State University has accepted
federal education funds. The Ohio State University thus no longer has the option to reject
the conditions on receipt of those funds. Those funding conditions include the conditions
established by FERPA as well as conditions established by a host of other federal Statﬁtes
includiﬁg Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments
of 1972, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. See Program Parﬁcipation
Agreement (The Ohio State University) (reproduced at Appendix A to this brief).

Although a state university may avoid funding conditions prospectively by
declining federal funds, it may not escape the conditions on funds it has already accepted.
Owasso, 534 U.S. at 428; ¢f. Harris v. McRae, 448 U.S. 297, 301 (1980) (“Although
participation in the Medicaid program is entirely optional, once a State ¢lects to

participate, it must comply with the [statutory] requirements.”).




Accordingly, the United States may bring suit to compel a funding recipient to
comply with the conditions on receipt of those funds. Even in the absence of express
statutorsf authority, “the United States has the inherent power to sue to enforce conditions
imposed on the recipients of federal grants.” Miami University, 294 F.3d at 808; see also
Barnes v. Gorman, 536 U.S. 181, 187 (2002) (5 “fundiﬁg recipient is generally oﬁ notice
that it is subject not only to those remedies explicitly provided in the relevant legislation,
but also to those remedies tfaditionally available in suits for breach of contract,” including
“injunction”); United States v. Marion County School District, 623 F.2d 607, 609 (5th
Cir. .1980) (“As the Supreme Court has long recognized, the United States may attach
conditidns to a grant of federal assistance, the recipient of the grant is obligated to
perform the conditions, and the United States has an inherent right to sue for enforcement
of the recipient’s obligation in court.”); Henke v. Department of Commerce, 83 F.3d
1445, 1450 (D.C. Cir. 1996) (following Marion County); 14 C. Wright & Miller, Federal
Practice and Procedure, § 3531.11 (1985).

ESPN notes that the Miami University case was an enforcemenf action brought by
the United States. See ESPN Merits Br. 13. That point has no bearing on whether a
universify is prohibited from making disclosures that violate FERPA’s conditions. A
university’s obligation to comply with the conditions on federal funds it has accepted
exist regardless of whether the United States has brought suit to enforce those obligations.

In the footnote in the Miami University opinion on which ESPN relies (see SPN Merits
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Br. 13), the Sixth Circuit recognized that a private party cannot sue to enforce FERPA’s
non-disclosure provisions in an action brought under 42 U.S.C. § 1983. See Miami
Univer&ity, 204 F.3d at 809 n.11 (citing Gonzaga University v. Doe, 536 U.S. 273
(2002)). At the same time, the Sixth Circuit stresscd that “[o]nce the conditions and the
funds are accepted, fhe school is indeed prohibited from systematically releasing
education records without consent.” Id, at 809. The Sixth Circuit’s reasoning is equally
applicable here.

Amicus Curiae United States’ Proposition of Law No. 2:

If the PRA were interpreted to require The Ohio State University to disclose

records without regard to the FERPA’s protections, the University would have a
“policy or practice” of making disclosures that violate FERPA.

In the alternative, ESPN argues that “fhe release of records in one instance™ would
not establish a ““policy or practice’” of permitting the release of education records or
personally identifiable information contained therein in violation of FERPA. ESPN
Merits Br. 14 (quoting 20 U.S.C. § 1232g(b)(1)). The premise of ESPN’s argument,
however, is that fhe PRA systematically requires the University to release records without
regard to the protections of FERPA. If that premise were correct, the University would
have a “policy or practice” of making disclosures that violate FERPA.

The premise of ESPN’s argument is incorrect because the PRA expressly exempts
records “the release of which is prohibited by . . . federal law.” R.C. 149.43(A)Y(1)(v).

Thus, the PRA ensures that state officials will not be subject to conflicting obligations

-9-




under federal and state law. Assuming arguendo that there were a conflict between state
and federal law, it is well settled that conditions on federal funds would control by
operati(_)n of the Supremacy Clause. See, e.g., Townsend v. Swank, 404 U.S, 282, 285
(1971); Carleson v. Remillard, 406 U.S. 598, 604 (1972); Blum v. Bacon, 457 U.S. 132,
145-46 (1982); Bennett v. Arkansas, 485 U.S. 395, 397 (1988) (per curiam); Dalton v.
Little chk F amily Planning Servs., 516 U.S. 474, 476 (1996) (per curiam); Missouri
Child Care Ass’nv. Cross, 294 F.3d 1034, 1041 (8th Cir. 2002); Westside Mothers v.
Haveman, 289 F.3d 852, 859-60 (6th Cir. 2002); Antrican v. Odom, 290 F.3d 178, 188
(4th Cir. 2002); Frazar v. Gilbert, 300 F.3d 530, 550-51 (5th Cir. 2002), reversed on

other grounds, 540 U.S. 431 (2004).
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CONCLUSION
For the reasons discussed above, The Ohio State University has accepted federal
education funds and is thus prohibited from having a policy or practice of disclosing
covered records in violation of FERPA. If Ohio law required The Ohio State University
{o disclose education records without regard to FERPA’s protections, the University
would have a such a prohibited policy or practice. There is no conflict between state and
federal law, however, because the PRA exempts records the release of which is prohibited
by federal law.
Respectfully submitted,
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FEDERAL STUDENT AIDSESTART HERE. GO PURTHER"

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

' FEDERAL STUDENT AID
SCHOOL ELIGIBILITY CHANNEL

PROGRAM PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT
Effective Datcof  The date on which this Agreement is signed on behalf of the

Approval: . Secretary of Education
Approvel Bxpiration  geptember 30, 2015

Reapplication Date: ~ June 30, 2613

Name of Institution: Ohio State University (The)
Address of Institution: 205 Bricker Hail
190 North Oval Mall
Columbus, OH 43210-1358

OPE ID Number: 00309000
DUNS Number: 105693949
Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN): 316025986

e e e e P oo

The execution of this Agreement by the Institution and
the Secretary is a prevequisite to the Institution's initial
or continued participation in any Title IV, HEA Program.

— e TR

The postsecondary educationsl institution listed above, referred to hereafier as the "instittion,”
and the United States Secretary of Education, referred to hereafter as the "Secretary,” agree that
the Institution may participate in those student financial assistance programs authorized by Title
IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (Title IV, HEA Programs) indicated under
this Agreement and further agrees that such participation is subject to the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement. As used in this Agreement, the term "Department” refers to the U.S.
Department of Education. .

SCOPE OF COVERAGE

This Agreement applies to all locations of the Institution as stated on the most current
ELIGIBILITY AND CERTIFICATION APPROVAL REPORT issued by the Department. This
Agreement covers the Institution's eligibility to participate in each of the following listed Title

hltp:f!www.eligcert.ed.govleapplppa_doc?opc=003090&id=3 1002 ' 47282010

K
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S IV. HEA programs, and incorporates by reference the regulations cited.

o _ .« FEDERAL PELL GRANT PROGRAM, 20 US.C. 1070a et seq; 34 CFR Par( 690.

+ FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM, 20 US.C. 071 ef seg; 34 CFR Part 682
+ FEDERAL DIRECT STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM, 20 US.C. 10872 et seq: 34 CFR Part 685.
« FEDERAL PERKINS LOAN PROGRAM, 20 US.C. 1087aa et seq; 34 CFR Part 674,

FEDERAL SUPPLEMENTAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY GRANT PROGRAM, 20 -
U.5.C. 1070b et seq; 34 CFR Part 676. .

+ FEDERAL WORK-STUPY PROGRAM, 42 U.S.C. 2751 ¢t seq; 34 CFR Part 675,

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. The Institution understands and agrees that it is subject to and will comply with the program
statutes and implementing regulations for institutional eligibility as set forth in 34 CFR. Part
600 and for each Title IV, HEA program in which it participates, s well as the general
provisions set forth in Part F and Part G of Title IV of the HEA, and the Student Assistance
General Provisions regulations set forth in 34 CFR Part 668.

The recitation of ury portion of the statute or regulations in this Agreement does not Iimit
the Institution's obligation to comply with other applicable statutes and regulations.

2. a The Institution certifies that on the date it signs this Agreement, it has a drug abuse
prevention program in operation that it has determined is accessible to any officer,
employee, or student at the Institution.

b. The Institution certifies that on the date it signs this Agreement, it is in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of Section 435(f) of the HEA (Campus Security Policy and
Crime Statistics).

3. The Institution agrees to comply with -

g Title V1of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and the implementing regulations,
34 CFR Parts 100 and 101 (barring discrimination on the basis of race, color or national
origin); .

b. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 and the implementing regulations, 34
CFR Part 106 (barring discrimination on the basis of sex);

¢. The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 and the implementing

“regulations, 34 CFR Part 99;

d. Scction 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the implementing regulations, 34
CER Part 104 (barring discrimination on the basis of physical handicap);and

e. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and the implementing regulations, 34 CFR Part
114, '

f The Standards for Safeguarding Customer Information, 16 C.F.R. Part 314, issued by
the Federal Trade Commission (FTC), as required by the Gramm-Leach-Bliley (GLB)
Act, P.L. 106-102. These Standards are intended to easure the security and
confidentiality of customer records and information. The Secretary considers any breach
10 the security of student records end information as a demonstration of a potential lack
of administrative capability as stated in 34 C.F.R. 668.16(c). Institutions arc strongly
encouraged to inform its students and the Department of any such breaches.

hitp:/fwww eligeert.ed.govieapp/ppa_docope=003 090&id=31002 4/38/2010
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" 4.The Instinution acknowledges that 34 CFR Parts 602 and 667 require accrediting agensies,

State regulatory bodies, and the Secretary to share information about institutions, The

o " Institution agrees that the Secretary, any accrediting agency recognized by the Secretary, and

any State regulatory body may share or report information to one another about the Institution
without limitation.

5. The Institution acknowledges that the HEA probibits the Secretary from recognizing the
accreditation of any institwtion of higher education unless that institution agrees to submit any
dispute involvirig the final denial, withdrawal, or termination of accreditation to initial
arbitration prior to any other lege! action. :

SELECTED PROVISIONS FROM
GENERAL PROVISIONS REGULATIONS, 34 CFR PART 668

By entering into this Program Participation Agreement, the Institution agrees that: | ‘

(1) It will comply with all statutory provisions of or applicable to Title IV of the HEA, all
applicable regulatory provisions prescribed under that statutory authority, and all applicable
special arrangements, agreements, and limitations entered into under the authority of statutes
applicable to Title IV of the HEA, including the requirement that the institution witl use funds it
receives under any Tifle IV, HEA program and any interest or other earnings thereon, solely for
the purposes specified in and in accordance with that program;

() As a fiduciary responsible for administering Federal funds, if the institution is permitted to
request funds under a Title IV, HEA program advance payment method, the institution will time
its requests for fnds under the program to meet the institution's immediate Title TV, HEA
program needs;

(3) It will not request from or charge any student a fee for processing or handling any
application, form, or data required to determine & student’s cligibility for, and amount of, Title
1V, HEA program assistance;

(4) It will establish and maintain such administrative and fiscal procedures and records as may be
necessary to ensure proper and efficient administration of funds received from the Secretary or
from stidents under the Title IV, HEA prograrus, together with assurances that the institution
will provide, upon request and in 8 timely manner, information relating to the administrative
capability and financial responsibility of the institution to--

(i) The Secretary; )

(i) The State [regulatory bodies] for the State or States in which the institution or any of the
institution's branch campuses or other locations are ocated;

(fii) A guarenty agency, as defined in 34 CFR part 682, that guarantees Joans made under the .
Federal Stafford Loan, and Federal PLUS programs for attendance at the institution or any of the
institution’s branch campuses or other locations;

(iv) The nationally recognized accrediting agency that accredits or preaccredits the institution or
any of the institution’s branch campuses, other locations, or educational programs;

(v) The Stale agency that legally suthorizes the institution and any branch campus or other
location of the institution to provide postsecondary education; and .

(vi) In the case of a public postsecondary vocational educationsi institution that is approved by a
State agency recognized for the approval of public postsecondary vocational education, that Statc
agency;

(5) It will comply with the provisions of §668.15 relating to factors of financial responsibility;
(6) It will comply with the provisions of §668.16 relating to standards of administrative
capability; :
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+ "+ (7) It will submit reports to the Secretary and, in the case of an institution participating in the
- Federal Stafford Loan, Federal PLUS, or the Federa! Perkins Loan Program, to holders of loans
. " ‘made to the institution’s students under these programs at such times and containing such
... information as the Secretary may reasonably require to carry out the purpose of the Title IV,

HEA progtams; : ..

(8) It will not provide any statement to any student or certification to any lender under the
Federal Stafford Loan or Federal PLUS Program that qualifies the student for a loan or foens in
excess of the amount that the student is eligible to borrow in accordance with §§425(a), 428(a)
(2), 428(b)}1XA) and (B), and 428H of the HEA; '
(%) It will comply with the requirements of Subpart D of 34 CFR part §§668 concerning
institutional and financial assistance information for students and prospective students;

(10) In the case of an institution that advertises job placement rates as a means of attracting
students to enroll in the institution, it will make available to prospective students, at or before the
time that those students apply for enrollment- :

(i) The most recent aveilable deta concerning employment statistics, graduation statistics, and
any.-gther information neoessary to substantiate the truthfulness of the advertisements; end

(ii) Relevant State licensing requirements of the State in which the institution is located for any
job for which an educational program offered by the institution is designed to prepare those
prospective students;

(11) In the case of an institution patticipating in the Federal Statford Loan, or Federal PLUS
Program, the institution will inform all eligible borrowers, as defined in 34 CFR part 682, ’
enrolled in the institution about the availability and eligibility of those borrowers for State grant
assistance from the State in which the institution is located, and will inform borrowers from
another State of the source for further information concerning State grant assistance from that
State; _

(12) It will provide the certifications described in paragraph (c) of this section;

(13) In the case of an institution whose students receive financial assistance pursuant to section
484(d) of the HEA, the institution will make avaiiable to those students a program proven
successful in assisting students In obtaining the recognized equivalent of a high schoo! diploma;
(14) It will not deny any form of Federal financial aid to any eligible student solely on the
grounds that the student is participating in a program of study abroad approved for credit by the
institution;

(15) In the cese of an institution seeking to participate for the first time in the Federal Stafford
Loan and Federal PLUS programs, the institution has ingluded a default management plan as part
of its application under §600.20 for participation in those programs and will use the plan for at
Jeast two years from the date of that application. The Secretary considers the requircments of this
paragragh to be satisfied by a default mansgement plan developed in accordance with the default
reduction measures described in the September 2005 Dear Partner Letter, GEN-05-14;

(16) Inthe case of an institution that changes ownership that resuits in a change of control, or
that changes its status as 8 main campus, branch campus, or an additional location, the institution
will, to participate in the Federal Stafford Loan and Federal PLUS Programs, develop a default
management plan for approval by the Secretary and implement the plan for st least two years
after the change in control or status, The Secretary considers the requirements of this paragraph
1o be satisfied by a default management plan developed in accordance with the default reduction
measures described in the September 2005 Dear Partner Letter, GEN-05-14;

(17) The Secretary, guaranty agencies and lenders as defined in 34 CFR Part 682, nationally
recognized accrediting agencies, the Secretary of Veterans Affairs, State [regulatory bodies],
State agencies recognized under 34 CFR part 603 for the approval of public postsecondary
vocational education, and State agencies that legally authorize institutions and branch campuses
or gther locations of institutions to provide postsecondery education, have the authority to share

hnp-J!www.eligccrt.cd.gov/eapp/ppa_doc;?ope=003090&id=31002 ' , 4/28/2010

A-4



s it R i

© PPA. OPE ID: 00309000, PPA Expiration Date: 09/30/2015 PageSof 14

- _with each other any information pertaining to the institution's cligibility for or participation in the
.. Title IV, HEA programs or any information on fraud and abuse;

(18) Tt will not knowingly —

(i) Employ in a capacity that involves the administration of the Title TV, HEA programs or the
receipt of funds under those progmm, an individual whe has been convicted of, or has pled nole
contendere or guilty to, a crime involving the acquisition, use, or expenditure of Federal, State,

or local govemnment funds, or hds been administratively or judicielly determined to have

committed fraud or any other material violation of law involving Federal, State, or local
government funds; '

(ji) Contract with an institution or third-party servicer that has been terminated under section 432

.. of the HEA for & reason involving the acquisition, use, or expenditure of Federal, State, or [ocal
. government funds, or that has been administratively or judicially determined to have commitied

fraud or any other material violation of law involving Federal, State, or local government funds;
or
(ili) Contract with or employ any individual, agency, or organization that has been, or whose
officers or emptoyees have been-— . : ‘
{(A) Convicted of, or pled nolo contendere or guilty to, a crime involving the acquisition, use, or
expenditure of Federal, State, or local government funds; or _
{B) Administratively or judiciaily determined to have committed fraud or any other material
violation of law involving Federal, State, or local government funds; .

E

(19) It will complete, in a timely manner and to the satisfaction of the Secretary, surveys
conducted as a part of the Integrated Postsecondary Education Lata System (IPEDS) or any other
Federal collection effort, as designated by the Secretary, regarding data on postsecondary
institutions;

{20) In the case of an institution that offers athletically related student aid, it will comply with -
the provisions of paragraph (d) of this section; :

(21) It will not impose any penalty, including, but not limited to, the assessment of late fees, the
denial of access to classes, librarics, or other institutional facilities, or the requirement that the
student borrow additional funds for which interest or other charges are assessed, on any student
because of the student's inability to meet his or her financial obligations to the institution a3 a
vesult of the delayed disbursement of the proceeds of a Title IV, HEA. program Ioan due to
compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements of or appliceble to the Title IV, HEA
programs, or delays attributable to the institution;

(22) It will not provide, nor contract with any entity that provides, any commission, bonus, or
other incentive payment based directly or indirectly on success in securing enrollments or
finencial aid to any persons or entities engaged in any student recruiting or, admission activities
or in making decisions regarding the awarding of student financial assistance, except that this
requirement shall not apply to the recruitment of foreign students residing in foreign countrics
who are not eligible to receive Federal Student Assistance. This provision does not apply to the
giving of token gifis to students or alumni for referring students for admission to the institution
88 Jong as: the gift is not in the form of money, check, or money order; no more than one such
gift is given to any student or alumnus; end the gift has a value of not more than $100;

(23) Tt wil} meet the requirements established pursuant to Part H of Title IV of the HEA by the
Secretary, State [authorizing bodies), and nationally recognized accrediting agencies;

(24) 1t will comply with the refund provisions established in 34 CFR Part 668.22;

(25) 1t is liable for ail improperly administered funds received or refunded under the Title IV,
HEA programs, including any funds administered by a third-party servicer;

(26) If the stated objectives of an educational program of the institution sre to prepare a student
for gainful employment in a recognized accupation, the institution will--
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o ; Tequirements for the recognized occupation for which the program prepares the student.-The
Secretary considers the relationship to be reasonable if the number of clock hours provided in the
.. "program does not exceed by more than 50 percent the minimum number of clock hours required
_ for training in the recognized occupation for which the program prepares the student, as
established by the State in which the program is offered, if the State has established such a
requirement, or as established by any Federal agency; and :
(if) Establish the need for the training for the student to obtain employment in the recognized
occupation for which the program prepares the student,
(c) In order to participate in any Title IV, HEA program {other than the SSIG and NEISP
programs), the institution must certify that it _
(1) Has in operation a drug abuse prevention program that the institution has determined to be
accessible to any officer, employee, or smdent at the instiruion; and
(2)?‘('1) Has established & campus security policy in accordance with section 485(f) of the HEA,
an
t(;i) E%s:omplied with the disclosure requicemeénts of §668.47 as required by section 485(f) of
e . .
(d) In order to participate in any Title IV, HEA program (other than the SSIG and NEISP
programs), an institution that offers athletically related student aid must—
() Cause an annual compilation, independently audited not less often than every 3 years, to be
- prepared within 6 months afler the end of the institution's fiscal year, of—
(i) The revenues derived by the institution from the institution's Intercollegiate athletics
activities, acoording to the following categories:
(A) Total revenues.
(B) Revenues from football.
(C) Revenues from men's basketball,
(D) Revenues from women's basketball.
(E) Revenues from all other men's sports combined.
. (F) Revenues from all ofher women's sporis combined;
(if) Expenses made by the institution for the institution's intercollegiate athletics activitis,
according to the following categories: o
(A) Total expenses.
(B) Expenses attributable to football.
(C) Expenses attributable to men's basketball,
(D) Expenses attributable to.women's basketball.
(E) Expenses attributable to all other men's sports combined.
! (F) Expenses attributable to all other women's sports combined; and
i (iii) The tota] revenues and operating expenses of the institution; and
i (2) Make the compilation and, where aliowable by State law, the results of the audits required by
patagraph (d)(1) of this section available for inspection by the Secretary and the public.
(¢) For the purposes of paragraph (d) of this section—-
() Revenues frotn intercollegiate athletics activities allocable to a sport shall include without
limitation gate veceipts, broadcast revenues and other conference distributions, appearance
guarentees and options, concessions, and advertising; ‘
(2) Revenues such as student activities fees, alumni contributions, and investment interest
income that are not allocable to a sport shall be included in the calculation of total revenues only;

(3) Expenses for intercollegiate athletics actjvities allocable to a sport shall include without
Hmitation grants-in-aid, salaries, travel, equipment, and supplies; and .
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(4) Expenses such as general and administrative overﬁead that are not allocable to a sport shall

" -be included in the calculation of total expenses only.
" ((1) A program participation agresment becomes effective on the date that the Secretary signs

the agreement. ) _

(2) A new program participation agreement supersedes any prior program participation
agreement between the Secretary and the institution.

(g)(1)(i) With respect to an institution that has been certified other than under a provisional
certification— '

(A) Bxcept as provided in paragraphs () and (i) of this section, the Secretary tenminates a
program participation agreement through the proceedings in subpart G of this part.

(B)-An institution may terminate a program participation agreement.

(C) If the Secretary or the institution terminates a program participation agreement under
paragraph (g) of this section, the Secretary establishes the termination date,

(2) With respect 1o an institution that has been provisionally certified, the Secretary revokes a
provisional certification through the proceedings in §668.13(d).

(h) An institution's program participation agreement automatically expires on the date that—

" () The institution changes ownership that results in a change in control as determined by the

Secretary under 34 CFR part 600; or

(2) The institution’s participation ends under the provisions of §668.26(2)(1), (2), (4), or (7).

(i) An institution's program participation agreement no longer applies to or covers a location of
the ingtitution as of the date on which that Jocation ceases to be a part of the participating
institution,

WILLIAM D. FORD FEDERAL DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM

I an institution participates in the William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan (Direct Loan) Program,
the institution and its representatives shall comply with the statute, guidelines, and regulations
govemning the Title IV, Part D, Wiltiam D. Ford Federal Direct Loan Program as required by
Section 454 of Public Law 103-66. :

The institution will:

1. Provide for the establishment and maintenance of a Direct Loan Program at the Institution that
will:

Identify eligible students who seek student financial assistance in accordance with Section
. 484 of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (the HEA).

Estimate the need of students as required under Title 1V, Part F of the HEA.

Provide a certification statement of eligibility for students to receive loans that will not
exceed the annual or aggregate limits, except the Institution may exercise its authority, under
exceptional circumstances identified by the Secretary, to refuse to certify a statement that
permits & student 10 receive a loan, or certify & loan amount that ig less than the student's
determination of need, if the reason for such action is documented and provided in written
form to a student.

Establish a schedule for disbursement of loan proceeds to meet the requirements of Section
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..428G of the HEA.

Provide timely and accurate information to the Secretary conceming 1) the status of

borrowers while students are in attendance, any new information pertaining to the status of

_ student borrowers of which the Institution becomes awere after the student leaves the
Institution, and 2) the utilization of Federal funds under Part D at such times and in such

manner as prescribed by the Secretary.

2. Comply with requirements established by the Secretary relating to student loan information
with respect to the Direct Loan Program.

3. Provide that students at the Institution and their parents (with respect to such students) will-be
eligible to participate in the programs under Title IV, Part B of the HEA, Federal Family
Education Loan programs, at the discretion of the Secretary for the period during which such
Institution participates in the Direct Loan Program, except that 2 student or parent may not
receive Joans under both Part B and Part D of the HEA for the same period of enrollment,

4. Provide for the implementation of a guality assurance system, as established by the Secretary
and developed in consultation with Institutions of higher education, to ensure that the
" Institution is complying with program requirements and meeting program objectives.

5. Provide that the Institution will not charge any fees of any kind, regardless of how they are
described, 10 student or parent borrowers for loan application, or origination activities Gif
applicable), or the provision and processing of any information necessary for a student or
parent to receive a loan under Part D of the HEA. :

6. Provide that the Institution will eriginate loans to eligi-ble students and parents in éccordance
with the requirements of Part D of the HEA and use funds advanced to it solely for that

- purpose (Option 2 only).

7. Provide that the note or evidence of obligation of the Joan shall be the property of the
Secretary (Options 2 and 1 only). :

8. Implement such other provisions as the Secretary determines are necessary to protect the
interest of the United States and to promote the purposes of Part D of the HEA.,

9, Accept responsibility and financial Habitity stemming from its failure to perform its functions
- under this Program Participation Agreement.

The Institution's comtinued approval to participate in the Direct Loan Program will be based on
the Department of Education's review and approval of the Institution's future applications for
recertification to continue participating in the federal student aid programs.

CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED FROM INSTITUTIONS

The Institution should refer to the regulations cited below. Signature on this Agreement provides

 for compliance with certification requirements under 34 CFR Part 82, "New Restrictions on

Lobbying," and 34 CFR Part 85, "Government-wide Debarment and Suspension
(Nonprocurement) and Government-wide Requirement for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants).”
Breach of any of these certificates constitutes a breach of this Agrecment.
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v ,‘ "PART 1 CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT,

SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND

v SR TTA TR

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
1. Lobbying

- As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S, Code, and implemented at 34 CFR Part 82, for
" persons entering into a grant or cooperative agreement over $100,000, as defined at 34 CFR Part
82, Sections 82.105, and 82.110, the Institution certifies that:

(2) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behaif of the
undersigned, to any persen for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of n Member of Congress in cormection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federel grant or cooperative agreement; '

(b) If any funds othet than Federal appropriated funds have been paid-or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Menmber of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an: employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal Grant or cooperative agreement, the Institution shail
completé and submit Standerd Form - LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in

. accordance with all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.
{c) The Institution shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
" documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subgrants, contracts under grants and
cooperative agreements, and subcontracts) and that all subrecipients shall centify and disclose
aceordingly.

2. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters

"As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 34 CFR
Part 85, for prospective participants in primary covered trensactions as defined at 34 CFR Part
85, Sections 85.105 and 85.110, the Institution certifies that it and its principals:

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
vohmtarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

" (b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, sttempting to obtain, or performing s public (Federal, State, or
focal) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of

 records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property.

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application bad one or more public
transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

3. Drug-Free Workplace (Grantees Other Than Individuals)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 34 CFR Part 85,
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" SubpartF, for grantess, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 85.605, and 85.610 -
. 7", The Institution certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
" | ".(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for viclation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about-
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The Institution's policy of maintaining & drug-free workplace;
(3) Asny svailable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4). The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations ocourring

in the workplace; .

(¢} Making it a requirement that each employee 1o be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

_ (d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) thet, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will -

(1)’ Abide by the terms of the statement, and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction fora violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(¢) Notifying the agency, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under this

subparagraph (d)(2) from an employes or otherwise receiving actus] notice of such

conviction, Employers of convicted employeces must provide notice, including position title,

to: Director, Grants and Contracts Service, U.S. Department of Education, 400 Maryland

Avenue, S.W. (Room 3124, GSA Regional Office Building No. 3), Washington, DC 20202~

5140. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

" (f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under

subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is 5o convicted -

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action sgainst such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1972, as
amended; or _

(2) Requiring such employee to patticipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federa!, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriete agency;

{g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through

implementation of paragraphs (g), (b), (c) (d), (e), and (f)-

4, Drug-Free Workplace (Grantees Who Are Individuals)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 34 CFR Part 85,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 85,605, and 85.610 -

I, Asacondition of the grant, the Institution certifies that it will not engage in the unlawful
~ manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance in-
conducting any activity with the grant; and

If eny officer or owner of the Institution is convicted of 2 criminal drug offense resulting
from a violation occurring during the conduct of any grant activity, the Institution will report
the conviction, in writing, within 10 calendar days of the conviction, to: Director, Grants and
* Contracts Service, U.S, Department of Education, 400 Maryland Avenue, $.W. (Room 3124,
GSA Regional Office Building No. 3}, Washington, DC 20202-5149, Notice shall include the
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" demification number(s) of cach affected grant.

PART 2 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION DRUG PREVENTION
CERTIFICATION | o

The undersigned Institution certifies that it has adopted and implemented a drug prevention
program for its students and employees that, at a minimym, includes—

1. The annual distribution in writing to each employee, and 10 each student who is taking one or
more classes for any kind of academic eredit except for continuing education units, regardless
of the length of the student's program of study, of:

_ « Standards of conduct that clealy prohibit, ata minimum, the volawful possession, use,
or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol by students and employees on its property ot
as part of any of its activities.

o A description of the applicable legal sanctions under local, State or Federal law for the
uniawful possession or distribution of iflicit drugs and alcohol. _ :

+ A-description of the health risks associated with the use of illicit drugs and the abuse of
alcohol.

+ A clear statement that the Institution will impose disciplinary sanctions on students and
employees (consistent with local, State and Federal law), and a description of those
sanctions, up to and including expulsion or termination of employment and referral for
prosecution, for violation of the standards of conduct. A disciplinary sanction may
include the completion of an appropriate rehabilitation program.

» A description of any drug or alcohol counseling, treatment, or re-enfry programs that are
available to employees or students. :

2. A biennial review by the Institution of its progeam to:

» Determine its effectiveness and implement changes to the program if they are needed.
s Ensure that its disciplinary sanctions are consistently enforced.
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"\ _PART 3 CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION,

INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION - LOWER TIER
COVERED TRANSACTIONS :

'f'ﬁe Institution i3 to obtain the signatures of Lower Tier Contractors on copies of the
certification reproduced below, and retain the completed certification(s) in the Institution's
files. . '

CERTIFICATION BY LOWER TTER CONTRACTOR
(Before Completing Certification, Read Instructions for This Part 3, below

(1) The prospective lower tier participant certifies by submission of this propesel, that neither

it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declered
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from pasticipation in this transaction by any Federal

Department of Agency.
(2) Where the prospective lower fier participant is unable to certify 10 any of the statements in
" this certification, such prospective participant shall aitach an explanation to this proposal.
Name of Lower Tier Organization {’JR!Award Number or Project
armne
Name of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
Signature of Authorized Representative Date J
e — el s S S S =

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this

_transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

3, The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to
which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that
its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

4, The terms "covered transaction,” "debarred,” "suspended,” "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction,” "participant,” "person," "primary covered transaction,” "principal,” "proposal,”
"voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person
to whom this proposel is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations,

5, The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless avthorized by the
department or agency with which this transaction originated,

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wiil ~

hitp://www.eligoert.ed. gov/eapp/ppa_doc?ope=003090&id=31002 41282010
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" include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion~Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification, in alj lower
tier covered transactions and in alf solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

7. A participant in a covered transaction ray rely upon a certification of a prospective participant

in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A
participant may decide the method and frequency by which it deterrnines the eligibility of its
principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List,

8. Nothing contained in the fo’rcgoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of

* records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participent is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealinigs.

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participaot in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who
is suspcnded debayred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition 1o other remedies available to the Federa) Government, the department

or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including
suspenmon and/or debarment. -

NOTE: A completed copy of the "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility
and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered Transactions” form must be retained by
the Institution. The original blank certification must be returned with the PPA.

’_‘. -~ I-

http//www.eligeert.ed.gov/eapp/ppa_doc?ope=003090&id=31002
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF

Signature of Institution's ,
Chief Executive Officer: o VUM, Date: ._031/03/10 -

Print Name and Title: _ :

the parties hereto have caused this Agteement to be ejj::jthcir duly authorized representatives.

ate University

For the Secretary: WM ' _Date:_/=si¥niay

USS. Department of Educafion

http://eligeert.ed.gov/eapp/owa/ppa_doc?ope=003090&id=31002
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